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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The station is a small nineteenth century building which has great charm 
and character. The exterior/ essentially in the "Stick Style", is painted 
yellow with white trim. Siding is horizontal tongue-and-groove redwood 
to the eave line. North and south gables are sided with decorative shingles 
as are hoods surmounting doors and windows.

The windows have large Victorian panes of glass in four-over-four double 
hung sashes. Cornices above bay windows, the eaves/ and gable ends 
include simple ornamental brackets. The end gables include Eastlake 
chalet-braces surmounted by finials rising above the ridge.

The interior, with minor alterations, retains its essential character. The 
"ladies' waiting room," now used by .the Chamber of Commerce as a con- «/» 
ference room and by civic groups for meetings, is separated from the main m 
lobby by a series of large glass ticket windows mounted on a complex of rn 
drawers and cabinets, apparently surviving from the time when the struc­ 
ture was an active railroad station.

Located at the south end of the building, the conference room receives 
abundant natural light from the bay window. The room has retained much 
of its late nineteenth century ceiling and redwood walls. Intrusions to the 
interior character of the room are its linoleum floor, inappropriately placed 
heating ducts, and suspended fluorescent tube lighting. n

The main lobby has been converted to .use for the secretarial staff of the
Chamber. Wall~siirface's hiaVe been sheetrocked above the chair rail, and
the 6eilin'g nas'b'eeri covered with accoustical tile. z
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Architecturally, the Menlo Park Railroad Station is of special interest be­ 
cause it combines, in a graceful whole, many different elements repre­ 
sentative of wooden architecture .in the San Francisco Bay Are^a from the 
1860's to the 1 890 's. 'The 'origin ai building of 1867, whose roofline and 
overall form remain intact today, is a fine example of the simplified 
"picturesque cottage" style of the 1850's and 60' s.

In the 1880' s and 90' s, the station was updated with the addition of more 
extensive and elaborate decorative elements: brackets, mouldings, and 
gable-ornamentation typical of the "Stick- Style" and shingled surfaces 
and over-windows representative of the " Shingle- Style. " As a result, the 
building is like a survey of architectural styles of the period, a charming 
document of the changing, fanciful taste of the late nineteenth century .

From an. historical point of view^.it is one of the .e^rWestrbuUt existing - 
railway statibns in California. 1 'Iii*l8''6a/-]^lr;'-l^iai'^ide>/aJcci^d1o^
lots located between Oak Grove and Ravenswood Avenues.. Qn.Marqh 30,
1867. he sold a strip of land 100 by 720 feet, parts of the four lots f to the 
San Francisco and San Jose Railroad. On this acquisition the railroad built 
the present station. It was open for business in August, 1867. Early in
1868. the company which would become the Southern Pacific contracted to 
purchase the San Francisco and San Jose Railroad and soon extended the 
line southward , eventually to develop the Central Valley and Southern 
California.

In the 1850's, the region which is now Menlo Park was being transformed 
from grazing land and thickets under giant oak trees into American farms. 
Two Irishmen, Dennis Oliver and D. C. McGlynn, purchased a 1,700 
acre tract and nostalgically named it after their birthplace on the outskirts 
of Galway, a town named Menlough. Their new homesite was Menlo Park, 
and, to identify it, they built a large wooden gateway with the name painted 
in foot- high letters over the central arch. When the railroad station was 
built (nine years later), the gate was a landmark, hence the building was 
located nearby and given the name Menlo Park.

continued to page 2
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8. SIGNIFICANCE
Statement of Significance/ page 2

The coming of the railroad marked the beginning of a double transformation: 
the growth of a town and the development of a countryside filled with fashion­ 
able estates and beautiful grounds. The Atherton family had introduced the 
idea of a summer home in the area, and the railroad made it possible for 
others. In 1863, as the line was being constructed, the Menlo Park Villa 
Association advertised 800 acres in "villa lots" of "not less than five acres." 
The tract was a three-hour drive from San Francisco, but the new railroad 
could bring passengers from the City in 80 minutes!

Many prominent citizens, attracted by the natural beauty and mild climate of 
the area, came down to purchase or build stately country homes. It was a 
common sight to see handsome carriages waiting at the station for expected 
guests and distinguished visitors, who in future years would include the 
Prince of Wales (later King Edward VII), General Ulysses S. Grant, and 
President Benjamin Harrison.

Timothy Hopkins, James C. Flood, Edgar Mills, William Sharon, Charles N. 
Felton, and Leland Stanford were all prominent residents. Stanford, Governor 
of California and later U. S. Senator, began purchasing acreage in the 1870's 
and built a summer home on the banks of San Francisquito Creek. Although 
the Stanford home was just across the San Mateo County boundary, the Menlo 
Park Station was "their" station, and the family was very much a part of the 
Menlo community. After the tragic death of their only son, the Stanfords 
determined to create a lasting memorial by founding a university on the vast 
landholdings of their Palo Alto farm.

The opening of Stanford University in 1891 was a major event. The building 
had brought an array of architects, stone cutters, masons, landscape 
gardeners, and various technicians. Numerous professors as well as students 
lived in the village of Menlo Park, and all came and went from the Menlo 
Park Station.

The depot held the first telephone exchange for the area in 1884. 
called the Sunset Telephone and Telegraph Company. By 1888, 
ten subscribers to the service!

It was

,4 •x
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8. SIGNIFICANCE
Statement of Significance, page 3

During the 1880's, Thomas D. Wakelee was the agent for the Southern Pacific 
and for the Wells Fargo Company. An old record book found in the attic of 
the depot catalogues the delivery of freight and merchandise of all kinds to 
the surrounding estates. The fertile soil in outlying areas provided a wealth 
of fresh produce which was shipped from the depot to the City markets.

The stationmaster's wife served tea to the ladies in the well-furnished ladies' 
waiting room at the south end of the building. Irish lace curtains adorning 
the bay window permitted a pleasant view of the large oaks and the waiting 
carriages to the south of the building. The little station was the hub of 
activity.

World War I saw the establishment of Camp Frement, adjacent to Menlo Park, 
and brought a great influx of military personnel into the area. To accommo­ 
date all the baggage and equipment which was arriving by train, it was nec­ 
essary to construct a large covered shed at the north end of the station. 
Somewhat modified, it remains today.

The Menlo Park Railroad Station, having spanned the years, remains essen­ 
tially unchanged from its very beginning. The minor changes reflect the 
growing demand for transportation over the years as the community grew. The 
station is located in what is still roughly the geographic center of Menlo 
Park. Our station, which is now over 100 years of age, is our major land­ 
mark for giving directions east or west. Though it no longer serves as ticket 
office, it remains the terminus for the trips of hundreds of commuters who con­ 
tinue to make the daily rail trip up and down the San Francisco Peninsula. As 
the office of the Chamber of Commerce, the building continues to play a role 
in the growth of the community.

A new city transit system, the Menlo Park Carriage Authority, initiates com­ 
munity-wide bus service soon. The Menlo Park Station serves as its major 
junction. The building thus carries its tradition into another era of trans­ 
portation history. ,. _v
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